

Land at former Volkswagen Commercial Vehicles Dealership, Comet Way, Hatfield

Flood Risk Assessment

On behalf of Comet Way Hatfield Ltd.

Project Ref: 47179/4001/FRA | Rev: - | Date: November 2020

Registered Office: Buckingham Court Kingsmead Business Park, London Road, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, HP11 1JU Office Address: 50/60 Station Road, Cambridge, CB1 2JH T: +44 (0)1223 882 000 E: PBA.Cambridge@stantec.com

Document Control Sheet

Project Name: Land at Former Volkswagen Commercial Vehicles Dealership, Comet Way, Hatfield

Project Ref:47179/4001/FRAReport Title:Flood Risk AssessmentDoc Ref:-Date:November 2020

	Name	Position	Signature	Date
Prepared by:	pp. Michael Hartley	Assistant Engineer	E Edney	12/11/20
Reviewed by:	Stephanie Knowles	Senior Associate	S Knowles	12/11/20
Approved by:	Simon Darch	Director	S Darch	12/11/20
For and on behalf of Stantec UK Limited				

Revision	Date	Description	Prepared	Reviewed	Approved

This report has been prepared by Stantec UK Limited ('Stantec') on behalf of its client to whom this report is addressed ('Client') in connection with the project described in this report and takes into account the Client's particular instructions and requirements. This report was prepared in accordance with the professional services appointment under which Stantec was appointed by its Client. This report is not intended for and should not be relied on by any third party (i.e. parties other than the Client). Stantec accepts no duty or responsibility (including in negligence) to any party other than the Client and disclaims all liability of any nature whatsoever to any such party in respect of this report.

Contents

Execut	tive Sun	nmary	. 1
1	Introdu	uction	. 2
	1.1	Scope of Report	. 2
	1.2	Sources of Information	. 2
	1.3	Policy Context	. 3
	1.4	Caveats and Exclusions	. 3
2	Site Se	etting	. 5
	2.1	Site Description	. 5
	2.2	Topography	. 5
	2.3	Hydrological Setting & Flood Defences	. 6
	2.4	Existing Drainage Arrangements	. 6
	2.5	Geology and Hydrogeology	. 7
3	Overvi	ew of Flood Risk	. 8
	3.1	Online Flood Maps	. 8
	3.2	Groundwater Flooding	10
	3.3	Sewer Flooding	11
	3.4	Summary of Flood Risk	11
4	Impact	of Climate Change	12
5	Propos	sed Development and Sequential Test	13
	5.1	Proposed Development	13
	5.2	Flood Risk Vulnerability	13
	5.3	NPPF Sequential Test & Exception Test	13
6	Flood	Mitigation Strategy	14
	6.1	Sequential Approach	14
	6.2	Building Design	14
	6.3	Designing for Exceedance	14
7	Propos	sed Drainage	15
	7.1	Introduction and Design Approach	15
	7.2	Surface Water Drainage	15
	7.3	Foul Water Drainage	15
8	Residu	al Risk	16
9	Conclu	usions	17

Figures

Figure 2.1: Site Location	5
Figure 2.2: Area LiDAR Topography	6
Figure 2.3: Groundwater Source Protection Zones	7
Figure 3.1: EA Flood Zone Map	8
Figure 3.2: EA Flood Risk from Reservoirs Map	9
Figure 3.3: EA Flood Risk from Surface Water Map	10
Figure 5.1: Extract of Development Proposals	13

Tables

Table 3.1: BGS Borehole Logs in the vicnity of the Site	1	1
Table 4.1: Climate Change – Rainfall Intensities	. 1	2

Appendices

Appendix A	Site Plans
Appendix B	Topographic and CCTV Surveys
Appendix C	Thames Water Records & Correspondence
Appendix D	EA Records and Correspondence
Appendix E	Welwyn Hatfield Council SFRA Extracts
Appendix F	Council Records & Correspondence
Appendix G	Development Proposals

Executive Summary

This Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been prepared by Stantec UK Limited to support a full planning application for the redevelopment of the Advantage Cars site, Comet Way, Hatfield, AL10 9TF.

In accordance with the fundamental objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the FRA demonstrates that:

- (i) The development is safe;
- (ii) The development does not increase flood risk; and,
- (iii) The development does not detrimentally affect third parties.

The Environment Agency (EA) Flood Zone map shows the site lies within Flood Zone 1 (as defined in Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 'Flood Risk and Coastal Change' Table 1) as follows:

Flood Zone 1 'Low Probability' (less than 1 in 1000 (0.1%) annual probability of river or sea flooding)

The proposals for residential development constitute More Vulnerable land use, which is considered appropriate within Flood Zone 1 (reference NPPF PPG Tables 2 and 3). The sequential test is considered to be passed based on the site being located in Flood Zone 1 and at low risk from other sources of flooding.

The flood risk mitigation strategy for the development consists of the following elements:

- A minimum 150mm 'freeboard' is incorporated in ground floor levels for buildings and appropriate profiling of exterior ground levels away from building entrances;
- Provision of appropriate surface water drainage systems, including consideration of projected impacts of climate change and exceedance events;
- Plans in place for future management and maintenance of drainage systems.

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) are to be utilised throughout the development and include green roofs, lined permeable pavements and underground cellular attenuation. The runoff rate from the site to the public surface water sewer beneath Goldsmith Way is restricted to 1 l/s through a flow control device. Surface water attenuation is provided up to the 1 in 100 (1.0%) annual probability event including allowance for climate change rainfall event, resulting in a reduction in peak runoff rates.

The surface water management strategy takes into consideration the current constraints of the site, long term storage mitigation requirements, landscaping proposals and water quality treatment stages in accordance with the CIRIA SuDS Design Manual (C753).

In summary, the FRA demonstrates that the proposed development is safe and in accordance with the requirements of national and local planning policy.

1 Introduction

1.1 Scope of Report

- 1.1.1 Stantec UK Limited (referred to as Stantec hereafter) has been appointed on behalf of Comet Way Hatfield Limited ('the Client') to prepare a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) to support the Full Planning Application for the redevelopment of the Advantage Cars site, Comet Way, Hatfield (herein the 'Proposed Development').
- 1.1.2 This FRA is based on the available flood risk information for the site as detailed in Section 1.2 and prepared in accordance with the planning policy requirements set out in Section 1.3. The scope of this document is consistent with the 'Site-specific Flood Risk Assessment Checklist' from the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Planning Practice Guidance:

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-and-coastal-change#Site-Specific-Flood-Risk-Assessment-checklist-section

- 1.1.3 The required content of the checklist is detailed below along with specific cross-reference to the content in the report as follows:
 - 1) **Development site and location –** see **Section** Error! Reference source not found.;
 - 2) Development proposals see Section 5;
 - 3) Sequential Test see Section 5;
 - 4) Climate change see Section 4;
 - 5) Site-specific flood risk see Section Error! Reference source not found.;
 - 6) Proposed Drainage see Section 7;
 - 7) Occupants and users of the development see Section 5;
 - 8) Residual Risk see Section 8;
 - 9) Flood risk assessment credentials Stantec has many years of experience in, amongst other areas, the assessment of flood risk, hydrology, flood defence and river engineering. The authors and reviewers of the document are all experienced engineers and members of chartered institutions such as the Chartered Institution of Water and Environmental Management (CIWEM) or the Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE).

1.2 Sources of Information

- 1.2.1 The FRA has been prepared based on the following sources of information:
 - Environment Agency (EA) published 'Open Data' datasets available online, reproduced with OS mapping under licence to Stantec (contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right [2019], contains Environment Agency information © Environment Agency and database right);
 - EA Product 4 data (Reference: HNL_181199NR, dated 14th August 2020);

- Welwyn Hatfield Council Level 1 and Level 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment: Final Report carried out by JBA Consulting dated May 2016;
- Proposed Development at Advantage Cars, Comet Way, Hatfield Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report (Report Ref: 47179/3502/r1) carried out by Stantec dated August 2020;
- Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment (PFRA) for Hertfordshire County Council (June 2011) and addendum update (2017);
- Drainage Statement (report reference 47179/4001/DS) (Stantec, November 2020). The report should be read in conjunction with this FRA.

1.3 Policy Context

- 1.3.1 This FRA has been prepared in accordance with the relevant national, regional and local planning policy and statutory authority guidance as follows:
 - National policy contained within the revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) updated March 2020, issued by Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, with reference to Section 14 'Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change';
 - The NPPF Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) released in March 2014 ('Flood Risk and Coastal Change' section) and updated to incorporate the EA 'Flood Risk Assessments: Climate Change Allowances' guidance (most recently updated July 2020);
 - Local planning policy contained within the Welwyn Hatfield District Plan adopted in 2005. Relevant policies include: Policy SD1: Sustainable Development, Policy R7 -Protection of Ground and Surface Water, Policy R9 - Water Supply and Disposal, and R10 - Water Conservation Measures;
 - The Welwyn Hatfield Council Draft Local Plan Proposed Submission document 2016 contains Policy SADM 14 Flood Risk and Surface Water Management. The Draft Local Plan is currently undergoing examination and Policy SADM 14 has already been examined by the Planning Inspector with no modifications requested. The policy is therefore considered as a material consideration in the determination of applications for planning permission. The site is not included within the Draft Local Plan Policies Map; and
 - The Flood and Water Management Act (2010) gives the Environment Agency (EA) a strategic overview role for flood risk and gives local authorities responsibility for preparing and putting in place strategies for managing flood risk from groundwater, surface water and ordinary watercourses in their areas as Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFA).

1.4 Caveats and Exclusions

- 1.4.1 This FRA has been prepared in accordance with the NPPF and Local Planning Policy. The proposed flood management (including ground floor level recommendations) and surface water management strategies are based on the relevant British Standards (BS8533), the standing advice provided by the EA or based on common practice.
- 1.4.2 The revised Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015 (CDM Regulations) came into force on April 2015 to update certain duties on all parties involved in a construction project, including those promoting the development. One of the designer's responsibilities is to ensure that the client organisation, in this instance Comet Way Hatfield Ltd, is made aware of their duties under the CDM Regulations. For further information on the CDM Regulations is provided in the client guide is available at http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg411.pdf

- 1.4.3 The approach for the FRA and proposals for the surface water management strategy are based on the requirements of the EA and Hertfordshire County Council (HCC) in its role as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA).
- 1.4.4 The findings of this FRA are based on data available at the time of the study and on the subsequent assessment that has been undertaken in relation to the development proposals as outlined in Section Error! Reference source not found.. The EA Product 4 flood data on which the FRA is based is valid under a 12 month licence. As such, the FRA is accurate at time of issue but we would recommend the end user reviews the validity of the flood data on an annual basis with the EA.
- 1.4.5 It should be noted that the insurance market applies its own tests to properties in terms of determining premiums and the insurability of properties for flood risk. Those undertaking development in areas which may be at risk of flooding are advised to contact their insurers or the Association of British Insurers (ABI) to seek further guidance prior to commencing development. Stantec do not warrant that the advice in this report will guarantee the availability of flood insurance either now or in the future.

Stantec

2 Site Setting

2.1 Site Description

- 2.1.1 The 0.50 hectare (ha) site is located west of the A1001 (Comet Way) in the town of Hatfield in Hertfordshire County (postcode AL10 9TF, site centre OS grid reference 521648m E, 208772m N see Figure 2.1). A Site Location Plan with Aerial Photography, reference Figure 002, is contained in Appendix A.
- 2.1.2 The town of Hatfield lies within the administrative boundary of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC).



- 2.1.3 The site comprises a van dealership and an asphalt surfaced forecourt/parking area.
- 2.1.4 The Site is bound to the south by a pedestrian underpass and Jetliner Way, to the west by Goldsmith Way and to the north by an electricity substation and the car park of an adjacent restaurant. The A1(M) is present at depth within a tunnel approximately 30m east of the site.
- 2.1.5 Access to the site is via Comet Way immediately to the east.

2.2 Topography

A topographic survey has been carried out by Survey Solutions Ltd in November 2019 and is enclosed in Appendix B. The site has levels ranging between 76.30-76.00m AOD. An extract of **Stantec Figure 47179/4001/GIS002** in Figure 2.2 and shows that the general topography of the site and surrounding area. It shows the site and immediate surrounding area is flat with higher ground to the east.



Figure 2.2: Area LiDAR Topography

2.3 Hydrological Setting & Flood Defences

- 2.3.1 The nearest watercourse, named the Cut Field Wood Ditch is located approximately 900m west of the site. The watercourse drains southwards relative to the site.
- 2.3.2 The nearest EA Main River, named the Ellen Brook is located approximately 1.1km south west of the site.
- 2.3.3 There is a small-scale lake near the junction between Comet Way and St Albans Road West (A1057) approximately 500m south west of the site.
- 2.3.4 The site is situated within a low-lying part of a catchment (estimated area 0.54km²) which generally falls to the north west.
- 2.3.5 There are no existing flood defences within close proximity to the site.

2.4 Existing Drainage Arrangements

On Site Drainage

- 2.4.1 A survey of existing services within the site was completed by Survey Solutions in November 2019. A copy of the survey plan is included in **Appendix B**.
- 2.4.2 The CCTV survey shows the site (existing building and hardstanding) discharges surface water drainage towards the southern boundary of the site. This is assumed to be to a 300mm diameter private surface water sewer shown in the Thames Water sewer asset plan enclosed in **Appendix C** that runs westwards along the southern boundary of the site before connecting to a Thames Water public sewer at MH Ref:571C near the south-west corner of the site.

Public Sewers

- 2.4.3 Record drawings from Thames Water indicates infrastructure plans for the site and surrounding area. A copy of the sewer asset plan is provided in Appendix C. No public sewers cross the site. Plans provided show:
 - There is a 1350mm diameter surface water sewer (run between MH Ref: 681A and 571C) to the east of the site within the public highway (Goldsmith Way). This network drains to the west.
 - There is a foul water sewer which runs around the perimeter of the site (runs between Manhole Ref: 681D to 7701) within the public highway (Goldsmith Way, Jetliner Way and Comet Way). This network drains to the east. The head of the run is recorded to be a 150mm diameter pipe where it increases to a maximum of 300mm diameter downstream of the run.

2.5 Geology and Hydrogeology

- 2.5.1 The British Geological Survey (BGS) mapping show the site is underlain by the Lowestoft Formation comprising Diamiction. The Lewes Nodular Chalk and Seaford Chalk Formation underlies the superficial deposits. Geological information is shown in **Stantec Figures 47179/4001/GIS014-016** in **Appendix A**.
- 2.5.2 The site is underlain by a principal bedrock aquifer and a secondary (undifferentiated) superficial drift Aquifer.
- 2.5.3 The site is located in Groundwater Source Protection Zone (SPZ) II see Figure 2.3. This zone is 400 day travel time of pollutant to source and has a 250 or 500 metres minimum radius around the source depending on the amount of water taken. Without appropriate mitigation, the site is a potential risk to groundwater quality, associated with abstraction, if discharging untreated development generated surface water flow direct into the ground.



Figure 2.3: Groundwater Source Protection Zones

3 Overview of Flood Risk

3.1 Online Flood Maps

3.1.1 The following maps have been taken from the Stantec GIS flood maps report in Appendix A based on the EA Open data datasets available online and reproduced with OS mapping under licence to Stantec.

Flood Zone Map

- 3.1.2 The first phase in identifying whether a site is potentially at risk of flooding is to consult the Flood Map for planning, available on the Government website. This provides an initial indication of the extent of the Flood Zones, before a more detailed analysis of comparing a site-specific level survey and modelled flood levels is made. The Flood Zones are defined in Table 1 of the NPPF Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) ('Flood Risk and Coastal Change' section) as follows:
 - Flood Zone 1 'Low Probability' Land at less than 1 in 1000 (0.1%) annual probability of river or sea flooding;
 - Flood Zone 2 'Medium Probability' Land between 1 in 100 (1.0%) and 1 in 1000 (0.1%) annual probability of river flooding, or between 1 in 200 (0.5%) and 1 in 1000 (0.1%) annual probability of sea flooding;
 - Flood Zone 3 'High Probability' Land at 1 in 100 (1.0%) or greater annual probability of river flooding, or 1 in 200 (0.5%) or greater annual probability of sea flooding.



Figure 3.1: EA Flood Zone Map

- 3.1.3 The Flood Zone Map for Planning, refer to **Figure 3.1** shows the site is located within Flood Zone 1 'Low Probability'.
- 3.1.4 The EA have confirmed the site is located in Flood Zone 1 (see correspondence in Appendix D).

Flood Risk from Reservoirs Map

3.1.5 The EA provide maps showing the risk of flooding in the event of a breach from reservoirs, based only on large reservoirs (over 25,000 cubic metres of water). Figure 3.2 shows no flooding is expected to occur at the site or surrounding area in the event of a reservoir breach.



Figure 3.2: EA Flood Risk from Reservoirs Map

3.1.6 The SFRA (JBA Consulting, 2016) states there are no recorded instances of flooding from reservoirs in the Welwyn Hatfield area.

Flood Risk from Surface Water

- 3.1.7 The Surface Water Flood Map shows where areas could be potentially susceptible to surface water flooding in an extreme rainfall event (see Stantec Figures 47179/4001/GIS004 GIS010 in Appendix A). The latest mapping assesses flooding resulting from severe rainfall events based on the following three scenarios:
 - 1 in 30 (3.3%) annual probability rainfall event ('High' risk);
 - 1 in 100 (1.0%) annual probability rainfall event ('Medium' risk);
 - 1 in 1000 (0.1%) annual probability rainfall event ('Low' risk).
- 3.1.8 **Figure 3.3** shows the whole Site is at 'Very Low' risk of surface water flooding. Land adjacent to the southern boundary of the site is shown to be at 'Low' risk of surface water flooding, likely to be associated with a localised topographical low spot.



- 3.1.9 It should be noted that these maps are generated using a relatively coarse methodology whereby rainfall is routed over a ground surface model (LiDAR). The analysis does not take account of any specific local information on below-ground drainage infrastructure and infiltration, although an adjustment is included in urban areas to account for the impact of sewerage and a standard infiltration allowance based on soil type. Consequently, the mapping provides a guide to potentially vulnerable areas based on the general topography of an area.
- 3.1.10 Given the relatively low risk identified it is not deemed necessary to undertake detailed hydraulic modelling to quantify these risks further within this FRA.

3.2 Groundwater Flooding

- 3.2.1 Review of surrounding borehole logs suggest the groundwater level is more than 5m below ground level (bgl). A selection of nearby borehole logs is presented in Table 3.1.
- 3.2.2 A ground investigation was undertaken at site (see Stantec report ref: 47179/3502/R1). Groundwater was encountered at depth in the Kesgrave Catchment Subgroup. On 20th April 2020 groundwater was recorded at 13.59m bgl and 15.23m bgl in two boreholes. These findings support results shown in Table 3.1.
- 3.2.3 The SFRA (JBA Consulting, 2016) shows the site is not within the area susceptible to groundwater flooding (see SFRA extracts in Appendix E).
- 3.2.4 The site is therefore considered to at low risk of groundwater flooding.



3.3 Sewer Flooding

3.3.1 There are no public sewers which cross the site although there is a private surface water sewer in the south-east corner of the site. Thames Water confirmed they have no records of flooding in the vicinity that can be attributed to capacity limitations in the public sewerage system (see response in Appendix C). The site is at low risk from sewer flooding.

Historic Flood Records

3.3.2 The SFRA indicates there are no flood records for the site. TW, EA, HCC and WHBC hold no records of flooding for the site (see responses in **Appendices C- F** respectively).

3.4 Summary of Flood Risk

3.4.1 In summary, the site is considered to be at low risk of flooding from all sources and that there are no records of flooding from any source at the site.

Stantec

4 Impact of Climate Change

- 4.1.1 In considering flood risk to the site, it is necessary to fully consider the potential impacts of climate change for the lifetime of the development within the mitigation measures.
- 4.1.2 In February 2016 (last updated July 2020) the EA released new guidance on the application of climate change allowances in flood risk assessments:

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessments-climate-change-allowances.

- 4.1.3 This guidance provides contingency allowances for potential increases in peak river flow in Table 1, and for potential increases in rainfall intensity in Table 2. The latter requires consideration in any surface water drainage strategy for new development and is discussed in Section 7.
- 4.1.4 The peak river flow allowances table provides a range of allowances based on percentile (i.e. the degree of certainty of an event occurring, based on the range of climate change scenarios assessed through scientific investigations). The provided allowances are also subject to the vulnerability classification of the proposed use and the river basin district of the site.
- 4.1.5 As the site is located entirely in Flood Zone 1 and at a significant distance from any watercourses, as illustrated on the online Flood Map for Planning, it is considered reasonable to assume that the site is not impacted by fluvial flooding when climate change is taken into consideration.
- 4.1.6 The impact of climate change, for a residential development should be considered for the lifetime of the development and hence should be considered for a minimum of 100 years, therefore the change in rainfall intensity anticipated for the '2080s' (2070 to 2115) is applicable.
- 4.1.7 HCC require a 20% increase in rainfall intensities to be used for design purposes to assess the impact on the surface water drainage network. A 40% increase in rainfall intensities should be used to assess the potential flood risk implications including whether there is any increased flood risk to third parties as a result of the development. The climate change impact on rainfall intensity over time to be considered as part of the FRA is as detailed in Table 4.1.

Applies across all of England	Total potential change anticipated for the '2020s' (2015 to 2039)	Total potential change anticipated for the '2050s' (2040 to 2069)	Total potential change anticipated for the '2080s' (2070 to 2115)
Upper end	10%	20%	40%
Central	5%	10%	20%

Table 4.1: Climate Change – Rainfall Intensities

5 Proposed Development and Sequential Test

5.1 **Proposed Development**

5.1.1 This FRA accompanies a full planning application for:

"The demolition of existing buildings and the construction of a building comprising 122 residential units. The reminder of the site will include car parking, landscaping and supporting infrastructure."

5.1.2 A copy of the proposals is enclosed in **Appendix G** and **Figure 5.1** illustrates a snapshot of the Proposed Development at Ground Floor level (taken from Bryant and Moore Drawing No: *19_386_PL03B*).





5.2 Flood Risk Vulnerability

- 5.2.1 NPPF and PPG 'Flood Risk and Coastal Change' Table 2 confirms the '*Flood risk vulnerability classification*' of a site, depending upon the proposed usage. This classification is subsequently applied to PPG Table 3 to determine whether:
 - The proposed development is suitable for the flood zone in which it is located; and
 - Whether an Exception Test is required for the proposed development.
- 5.2.2 The proposed residential development is classed as 'more vulnerable' development.
- 5.2.3 The location of the proposed development is in Flood Zone 1.

5.3 NPPF Sequential Test & Exception Test

5.3.1 The NPPF follows a sequential risk-based approach in determining the suitability of land for development in flood risk areas, with the intention of steering all new development to the lowest flood risk areas. The Sequential Test is considered to be passed on the basis that the site is wholly located in Flood Zone 1 and at low risk from other sources of flooding. The Exception Test is not required.

6 Flood Mitigation Strategy

6.1 Sequential Approach

- 6.1.1 The NPPF encourages the application of the 'sequential approach' in the master-planning process for new development, i.e. locating the more sensitive/vulnerable elements of new development in the areas which lie at lowest probability of flooding and, conversely, reserve the areas of the site at greatest risk of flooding for the least vulnerable elements of the development (or, preferably, leave such areas undeveloped or as soft landscaping).
- 6.1.2 The whole of the development is located in Flood Zone 1, the lowest probability of flooding. In addition, the site is assessed to be at low risk of surface water flooding. The sequential approach is therefore not required with respect to fluvial or surface water flood risk.

6.2 Building Design

Ground Floor Levels

- 6.2.1 Standard requirements for ground floor levels of new development are set out in BS8533:2017 *Assessing and Managing Flood Risk in New Development – Code of Practice*. This recommends floor levels are set a minimum of 300mm above the modelled 1 in 100 annual probability plus allowance for climate change flood level.
- 6.2.2 The above standard requirement is not applicable as the site is located in Flood Zone 1.
- 6.2.3 Nevertheless, it is recommended that ground floor levels are set a suitable freeboard above surrounding ground (minimum 150mm) to mitigate the residual flood risk associated with excess surface water runoff in an extreme rainfall event. Similarly, exterior ground levels across the site should also be appropriately contoured to direct surface water away from dwellings in such a scenario.

6.3 Designing for Exceedance

- 6.3.1 The proposed surface water drainage system has been be designed to accommodate runoff during storm events up to the 1 in 100 (1.0%) annual probability plus allowance for climate change event. In excess of this it is possible that the design standard for the system will be exceeded.
- 6.3.2 To ensure that in an exceedance event any flooding does not affect properties or discharge from the development, flows will be managed on site. This may be achieved by ensuring that site levels are designed to direct flows away from the buildings and towards areas such as car parking or formal landscaping where temporarily shallow flooding can occur.

7 **Proposed Drainage**

7.1 Introduction and Design Approach

- 7.1.1 A separate 'Drainage Statement' report (by Stantec ref. 47179/4001/DS) including drainage calculations has been prepared. The report details how surface water runoff from the development is managed in accordance with the national and local policy requirements, and best practice guidance. The design aims to mitigate the risk of surface water flooding on site and to avoid increasing flood risk elsewhere. The Drainage Statement also details how foul drainage is managed. The below section summarises the details in the drainage strategy report.
- 7.1.2 Consultation has been undertaken with the approving authorities on the emerging drainage design, this included TW and HCC.

7.2 Surface Water Drainage

- 7.2.1 The proposed surface water drainage strategy is set out in the Stantec '*Drainage Statement*' (report ref. 47179/4001/DS) and consists of areas of green roof, permeable pavement across the car park and an underground cellular attenuation tank with a controlled discharge at 1 l/s to the public surface water sewer beneath Goldsmith Way.
- 7.2.2 The proposed surface water drainage system has been designed to accommodate surface water runoff up to and including the 1 in 100 annual probability +40% allowance for climate change rainfall event.

7.3 Foul Water Drainage

7.3.1 It is proposed to connect the foul drainage from the proposed development to the public foul sewer beneath Goldsmith Way. Further detail is provided in the Stantec '*Drainage Statement*' report.

8 Residual Risk

- 8.1.1 It is difficult to completely guard against flooding since extreme events greater than the design standard event are always possible, however, it is practicable to minimise the risk by allowing a freeboard (safety margin) and by using suitable construction and management techniques.
- 8.1.2 The below points set out how residual risk has been considered:
 - Recommended incorporation of minimum 150mm 'freeboard' in ground floor levels for buildings and appropriate profiling of exterior ground levels away from building entrances;
 - Provision of appropriate surface water drainage systems, including consideration of projected impacts of climate change and exceedance events;
 - Plans in place for future management and maintenance of drainage systems, refer to Sustainable Drainage Management and Maintenance Plan within the Stantec 'Drainage Statement' report;
- 8.1.3 As such, the residual risk is considered to be acceptable for the lifetime of the development.

9 Conclusions

- 9.1.1 This Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been prepared by Stantec to support a full planning application for the redevelopment of the Advantage Cars site, Comet Way, Hatfield.
- 9.1.2 This FRA concludes that:
 - The site is located within Flood Zone 1, having a less than 1 in 1000 (0.1%) annual probability of river flooding.
 - The proposals for residential development are classified as 'More Vulnerable' uses, as defined in PPG Table 2. According to PPG Table 3, the land use is appropriate for Flood Zone 1 without the need to apply the Sequential and Exceptions Test.
 - The site is considered to be at low risk from other forms of flooding such as from surface water and artificial sources.
 - The proposed mitigation strategy demonstrates the development is safe through a number of measures as follows:
 - Recommended incorporation of minimum 150mm 'freeboard' in ground floor levels for buildings and appropriate profiling of exterior ground levels away from building entrances;
 - Provision of appropriate surface water drainage systems, including consideration of projected impacts of climate change and exceedance events;
 - Plans in place for future management and maintenance of drainage systems.
- 9.1.3 The proposed surface water drainage strategy for the development consists of areas of green roof, permeable pavement across the car park and an underground cellular attenuation tank with a controlled discharge to the public surface water sewer beneath Goldsmith Way.
- 9.1.4 The sequential test is considered to be passed on the basis that the site is in Flood Zone 1 and at low risk from other sources of flooding.
- 9.1.5 In conclusion, the future occupants and users of the proposed development will be safe from flooding and there will be no detrimental impact on third parties. The proposal complies with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and local planning policy with respect to flood risk and is an appropriate development at this location.

Appendix A Site Plans

- Site Location Plan
- Site Location (Aerial Photography)
- Area Topography (LiDAR)
- EA Flood Zone Map
- EA Surface Water Flood Risk
- Reservoir Flood Map
- EA Historic Flood Map
- EA Groundwater Source Protection Zones
- Geology bedrock map
- Geology Superficial Deposits Map

			Site Boundary
arksion:Colisto			
"Olive"			
	Solution of the second se		
Client Comet Way Hatfield Ltd	COMET WAY, HATFIELD Site Location	0 50 100 Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2019	1:1,000 @ A3 Date: 31/07/2020 Drawn: MD Checked: MH Figure 47179/4001/GIS001a Rev B



Figure	47179/4001/GIS0
riguie	4/1/9/4001/0130



Site Boundary	
Elevation (mAOD)	ic.
≤ 73	
73.01	
73.01 - 74	
74.01 - 75	
75.01 - 76	
76.01 - 77	_
77.01 - 78	
78.01 - 79	
79.01 - 80	-
80.01 - 81	
> 81	

	St Albarn, Pa	West-	THE C
200 m	1:2,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	7/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked:	МН
	Figure 47179/4001/G	SIS002	Rev B



	the start	10
1	Site	Boundary
0	Main	Rivers
	Floo	d Zone 1
	Floor	d Zone 2
Andrew .	Floo	d Zone 3
		3//
	TRO	and the second
	Crawford	200
10		Stor.
	· v	xen:Court
	S	
	A. 6	1
- unmabe	NIGHTON NICONTROL	
	X	2
States 1		Sti
d Car		Chi
N 1 1/1 -		
ed	12	
difference.	HUNG	
Common Common	12	
	1	- 5/7
]/
La	101	
0		Dree
Delited Ro		A REAL
		WOOD'
	Lands Wood	
000	Nool	8
	6.00	
Wat	1	
Hollias		
CS a		
下き人		
500 m	1:5,000 @ A3	Date: 31/07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked: MH
	Figure 47179/4001/0	GIS003 Rev B



Document Path: J:\47179 Comet Way Hatfield\GIS\Workspaces\47179 GIS004 Flood Risk from Surface Water (Flood Extents)_RevB.mxd



Document Path: J:\47179 Comet Way Hatfield\GIS\Workspaces\47179 GIS005 Flood Risk from Surface Water (High Risk Depth)_RevB.mxd

- // /	
Site Boundary	
— Main Rivers	
Depth	
Below 150mm	
150 - 300mm	
300 - 600mm	
600 - 900mm	
900 - 1200mm	
Over 1200mm	

		1	
100 m	1:1,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked:	мн
	Figure 47179/4001/GIS005 Re		Rev B





100 m	1:1,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked:	ΜΗ
	Figure 47179/4001/G	SIS006	Rev B



Document Path: J:\47179 Comet Way Hatfield\GIS\Workspaces\47179 GIS007 Flood Risk from Surface Water (Medium Risk Depth)_RevB.mxd

	 Site Mair Depth 150 300 600 900 0vel 	Boundary n Rivers • 300mm • 900mm • 1200mm • 1200mm
	1	
100		
100 m	1:1,000 @ A3	Date: 31/07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked: MH
	Figure 47179/4001/G	IS007 Rev B



Document Path: J:\47179 Comet Way Hatfield\GIS\Workspaces\47179 GIS008 Flood Risk from Surface Water (Medium Risk Velocity)_RevB.mxd



100 m	1:1,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked:	МН
	Figure 47179/4001/G	SIS008	Rev B



Document Path: J:\47179 Comet Way Hatfield\GIS\Workspaces\47179 GIS009 Flood Risk from Surface Water (Low Risk Depth)_RevB.mxd

	1/	/	
//	Site E	Boundar	y
	- Main	Rivers	1
	Depth		1.00
	Belov	v 150mi	n 📄
/ / /	150 -	300mm	1
	300 -	600mm	1
	600 -	900mm	1
	900 -	1200m	m 📘
	Over	1200mi	n 📄
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			1
1			
F . (
1		13	1
1		15	
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		1	
	and the second second		
10 A 10 A 10			
		3	2
	· · · ·	1	P.
		1	
	- 11	- A	
- LUT N.	de la companya de la		
		1	
		2	P.s.
100	1:1,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	7/2020
111	Drawn: MD	Checked: I	МН
	Figure 47179/4001/G	IS009	Rev B



Document Path: J:\47179 Comet Way Hatfield\GIS\Workspaces\47179 GIS010 Flood Risk from Surface Water (Low Risk Velocity)_RevB.mxd

//		/	8 2
	Site Boun	dary	3
	— Main Rive	rs	
//	Velocity		1
		0.05 m	
/	Less than	0.25 m	n/S
	0.25 - 0.50) m/s	
1	0.50 - 1.00) m/s	
1	1.00 - 2.0) m/s	
1 A A	Over 2.00	m/s	
			1 L.
			- /
· · ·			
1			- 44
1			17
1			1
1		12	
1 1		1	
			-
			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
			1
			× .
			-
		1.00	9
		7	A.
		- A	1
			r
			1
			1
100	1.1 000 @ 43	Date: 31/	7/2020
m			MU
	נומאח: MD	Checked:	
	Figure 47179/4001/G	iS010	Rev B



7/18 20 21 20 // 201		1 40
	" tan	-
	A BIT	
	Site Bound	ary
0	Main River	s 🕨
And Person and Persons and	anth	
	eptn	
	Below 0.3n	ו
-	Between 0	3m and
	2m	
		1
·	Over 2m	_
· · · ·	awford fro	1. 1. 1.
An an anne	Cito	and and
A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNE		2" . go /
	· / M	2
	VI VI	xemCourt
	Solution	
Bur		
non l		1.0 . 40
	and the second	
A ANDREW A	100	
11	X	
111 211	h.	80
antito a		St L
		Chi
and the second s		
	<i>\$ //</i> . ¶	21
	12	
	8	
a contra	E.	
19 comme	2	
The C	6	1.00
		10
	-	19
	/	//
		/
1	7()2	
0		
		175
		Some
1	1 months	11- MO
	rauge anoor	
000	18	8
	S.C.	9
	3	
wat		
CHOILES		
	p.	
Se l		
E-T		
0 7/1		11
500 m	1:5,000 @ A3	Date: 31/07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked: MH
	Firmer 47470/400/11	
	Figure 47179/4001/0	GIS011 Rev B



	" Ster	and the second s
	Site Bound	ary
0)	Main River	s 🕨
	Flood Stora	age
	Areas	1
too and	Areas Bene	efiting
	Defences	-
	井 High Grour	nd
	Crant	10
10.000		Stor.
	· / v	KentCourt
	SV.	
and the second sec		
James Contraction		
		a A
1 sold 1		Sel St L
		Chi
and the second of		
1. 10	12.1	
ABROAD		
Same Commo	1	
in the		
		-1-1
	1	/1
	/	7/
		/
L	101	
0	_)/^^	JI-1-F
minolaRd		an a
all Dis		Rook
118 - 13	Usings Wood	
00d OP	a Vila	toos
	8	
Not - L	1	
Hollas		
6		
T-3		
500	1:5,000 @ A3	Date: 31/07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked: MH
	Figure 47179/4001/0	GIS012 Rev B
	•	





	1		
500	1:5,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	)7/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked:	ΜΗ
	Figure 47179/4001/0	SIS014	Rev B

Ň			Site Boundary LESE-CHLK Lewes Nodular Chalk Fo
Electronic and a second s		The Hanger	
Stantec	Client Comet Way Hatfield Ltd	COMET WAY, HATFIELD Bedrock Geology	0 250 Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2019





ALV-XCZSV Alluvium - Clay, Silt, Sand and Gravel KGCA-XSV Kesgrave Catchment Subgroup - Sand and Gravel LOFT-DMTN Lowestoft Formation - Diamicton

			1.
500 m	1:5,000 @ A3	Date: 31/0	07/2020
	Drawn: MD	Checked: MH	
	Figure 47179/4001/G	SIS016	Rev B

## Appendix B Topographic and CCTV Surveys

Drawing 25372UG-01 dated November 2019 by Survey Solutions



		<b></b>							
		UTILITII ABBREV 1D 5C 1 Du Ø Dian	ES & UN IATIONS & ct 5 Cables neter imed Route		C Circ PI Crown	INVES lastic Chamb Level To Crown	Der E	EOT End BD Inter	Of Trace
		AR Assu BL Base CB Cond CBC Circu	imed Route > Level crete Benching ilar Brick Cha	DC DI g DS mber DTI	Depth Depth Depth B Depth	To Crown To Invert To Silt To Base	li F F	∟ Inver RB Rest RBC Rect RCC Rect	rτ Level : Bend :angular Brick Chamber :angular Conc Chamber
<form></form>		CCC Circu CL Cove B O/	ılar Conc Cha er Level r ———— вт ———	mber DT ¹ DT: BT CABLE(S OVERHEAD	W Depth S Depth ;) BT CABLE(	To Water To Surcharg (S)	ge s S	SA Surv SL Silt L SuL Surc JTC Unal	ey Abandoned ⊾evel sharge Level ble To CCTV
				COMMUNIC CABLE TV C ELECTRIC C OVERHEAD	ATIONS CA CABLE(S) CABLE(S) ELECTRIC	.BLE(S) CABLE(S)	נ ו ו	JTL Unal JTT Unal IFR Take	ble To Lift ble To Trace en From Records
<form></form>		GI GI GI GP GP	R	GAS MAIN GAS SERVIO GROUND PE HOT WATER	CABLE(S) CE ENETRATIN R PIPE	IG RADAR (	F E (GPR) TI	PDR Poor EBD Exte RACE	⁻ Depth Response rnal Backdrop
			с т	LIGHTING C SECURITY C UNIDENTIFI WATER MAI	IRCUIT CABLING ED TRACE N	MI	H CL 48.	.93 UTILIT	TIES COMMENT BOX
Control of the second sec		w	S	WATER SEF COMBINED FOUL SEWE RISING MAIN	RVICE SEWER R N VATER SEW	0	SERV	/ICE ASSUM	
		DRAWING	<b>NOTES</b>	INVESTIGAT		NTS	SERV	ICE TAKEN	FROM RECORDS
		All below g excavatior radar (GPI features. F excavatior	ground det n. Survey S R) method: Results usi ns are carri	ails shown Solution use s to investi ng these m ed out to c	have bee e electro- gate for ι nethods a onfirm ar	en identifi magnetic undergrou ire not inf ny identif	ied fro and/c und uti allible icatior	m above or ground ilities, serv and we ro ns, positio	ground without penetrating vices and ecommend trial ns and depths.
		Any areas not necess have been good prac	on the dra sarily clear identified tice should	awing wher of services during our still be em	e service s or featu investiga ployed d	es or featu res but a ations. All uring des	ures ha re an i reaso sign ar	ave not be ndication nable car nd constru	een shown are that no items e and normal action processes.
		Certain typ ducting wh and alterna	oes of serv here direct ative locati	ices such a access cai ng method	as plastic n not be a s should	or concr achieved be used.	ete pip for tra	oes, some cing may	e conduit and not be shown
		Survey So records bu Survey So held respo	lutions has ut the com lutions car nsible for a	s used all r pleteness o nnot be gua any feature	easonabl or use of aranteed. es annota	le care to the servio Therefor ited as 'ta	resea ce rece re Surv aken fr	rch availa ords supp vey Soluti om record	able service llied to or by ons cannot be ds' (TFR).
		Depths ob conditions utilities and to the top indicated.	tained usir and shoul d services of a featur	ng electro-r d be treate are genera e and drair	nagnetic d as indio illy taken nage dept	or GPR a cative on to the ce th shown	are effe ly. Ele ntre o to inve	ected by o ctro-magr f a feature erts, unles	ground netic depths to e, GPR depths ss otherwise
	76.36 + 76.49	Drainage p should be obtained v	bipe sizes treated as isually will	will be obta approxima be taken f	ained with ate. Pipe rom reco	hout ente dimensio rds when	ering th ns whi availa	ne cambe ich have r able.	r and therefore not been
	Asphalt	All service points, unl	s, drainage ess otherw	e and utiliti /ise stated.	es routes The nun	are assume and a second second second second	umed s cables	straight be in runs w	etween access vill not be shown
		Services, u reasonably	utilities and visible or	quested. A l features r accessible	may not h at the tir	ave beer nave beer me of sur	ow gro n surve vey.	eyed if ob	ss indicated.
All ofdical dimensions and measurements should be checked and writer with accuracy of the digital calls is the same as the plating scale implies. All dimensions are in resume scale works with the same as the plating scale implies. All dimensions are in resume scale works with the same as the plating scale implies. All dimensions are in resume scale works with the same as the plating scale implies. All dimensions are in resume scale works with the same as the plating scale implies. All dimensions are in resume scale works with the same as the plating scale implies. All dimensions are in resume works dimensions work. I Land Survey Scalens Limite held the copyright to all the hormation contanted within this occurrent and their writem consent must be obtained bubble contanted within this occurrent and their writem consent must be obtained bubble contanted within this occurrent and their writem consent must be obtained bubble contanted within this occurrent and their writem consent must be obtained bubble contanted within the dimensions of the same and measurements are in resumant to be obtained within output of the same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble contanted within the dimensions of the same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent must be obtained bubble to be same and their writem consent to	¹² ++ 76.44	Survey So either the	lutions acc topograph	cept no res lical survey	ponsibility or base	y for the o mapping	comple on thi	eteness o s project	r accuracy of
	/ 76.54 / LP 0	All critical any errors accuracy o	dimension or discrep of the diaita	s and mea ancies noti al data is th	surement ified to Su the same a	ts should urvey Sol as the plo	be ch lutions ottina s	ecked an immedia scale impl	d verified with tely. The ies. All
		dimension The contra	s are in me	etres unles check and	s otherwi verify all	site and	l. buildir	ng dimens	ions, levels,
	o ^{RS}	utilities and © Land Su	d drainage irvey Solut	details and ions Limite	d connec ed hold th	tions prio le copyrig	r to co iht to a	ommencin all the info	ig work. prmation
	9 LP 76.29	contained copying or Do not sca	within this using the le from thi	document data other s drawing.	and their than for t	the purpc	onsen ose it v	it must be vas origin	ally supplied.
AVAILABLITY OF UTILITY RECORD DRAWINGS WINTY MAY PUBLIC DRAWIN PUBLIC DRAWIN PUBLIC DRAWIN PUBLIC DRECTMENTY PUBLIC DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTMENT DRECTME	476.23								
REV DESCRIPTION       REV     DESCRIPTION     DRAVIN     DIECCED     APR     BUTVEY DAT       DESCRIPTION     DRAVING DUE     DIECCED     APR     BUTVEY DAT       DESCRIPTION     DRAVING DUE     DIECCED     APR     BUTVEY DAT       DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     APR       DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     DESCRIPTION       DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     DESCRIPTION       DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DIECCED     DESCRIPTION       DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION       DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION     DESCRIPTION		AVAILAB UTILITY SEWER WATER MA GAS MAIN	AVAILAE AVAILAE PUBLIC PUBLIC PUBLIC	UTILITY R BILITY UTII BT CAE ELE	ECORD	AVAILABII PUBLIC PUBLIC PUBLIC	GS _ITY	UTILITY OIL PIPES OTHERS	AVAILABILITY NO NO
REV       DEGRIPTICN       DRAVNI       CHECHED       APPR       BURVEY DAY         REVIEW       DEGRIPTICN       DRAVNI       CHECHED       APPR       BURVEY DAY         DEVIEW       DEGRIPTICN       DRAVNICH DAY       DEGRIPTICN       DEGRIPTICN       DEGRIPTICN         DEVIEW       DEVIEW </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>									
REV DEBCRPTION DRAWN CHECKED APPR SJEVEYDA REV DEBCRPTION DRAWN CHECKED APPR SJEVEYDA REV DEBCRPTION DRAWN CHECKED APPR SJEVEYDA DRAWN CHECKED APPR SJEVEYDA SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDA SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDA SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDA SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVEYDR SJEVER SJEVEYDR SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJEVER SJE									
Interpreterest The description of any of the description of the descr									
REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED APPR SURVEY DATE REV DESCRIPTION DRAWN CHECKED APPR SURVEY DATE DRAWN CHECKED APPR SURVEY DATE DRAWN CHECKED APPR SURVEY DATE DRAWN CHECKED BY CHECKED BY CONTENT SURVEYOR SURVEY DATE CHECKED BY CONTENT SURVEYOR SURVEY DATE CHECKED BY CHECK									
REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWNI       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DATE         VIEW       DESCRIPTION       DRAWNI       CHECKED APPR       SURVEY DATE         SURVEY       DESCRIPTION       DRAWNI       CHECKED APPR       SURVEY DATE         VIEW       SURVEY       DRAWNING DETAIL       THITLE       DRAWNING DETAIL       THITLE         DRAWNING DETAIL       UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.       Sheet 1 of 1       CLIENT       COMET WAY, HATFIELD LTD       SCALE         URIVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         <									
Interespondent TeV DESCRIPTION DRAVINI CHECKED APPR SURVEY DA DRAVINI CHECKED APPR SURVEY DA DRAVINI CHECKED APPR SURVEY DA DRAVINI COMPACT STORE DRAVINI COMPACT STORE DRAVINI COMPACT STORE DRAVINI CHECKED STORE DRAVINI									
REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWNO									
REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       DRAWN       CHECKED       PROJECT       Fax No: 0845 0405 970         VWW.SURVEY-Solutions.co.uk       DRAWN       SURVEY Solutions.co.uk       END SURVEY-Solutions.co.uk       LAND SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING         PROJECT TITLE       BEADLES VOLKSWAGON, COMET WAY, HATFIELD.       DRAWNG DETAL       UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.         Sheet 1 of 1       COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       SCALE       1200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SH/HOWP       08/11/2019       GSB       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SH/HOWP       08/11/2019       GSB       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         DRAWING NUMBER	slness premises								
REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DATE         CONSTRUCTION       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DATE         CHECKED       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DATE         CHECKED       DSURVEY DATE       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DATE         CHECKED       SURVEYING       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DATE         CHECKED       SURVEY       SURVEY       SURVEY       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY       APPR									
REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         Image: Construction of the state of the s						I	1	I	I
REV       DESCRIPTION       DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         INTERCE DESCRIPTION         DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         INTERCE DESCRIPTION         DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         SURVEY DESCRIPTION         DRAWN       CHECKED       APPR       SURVEY DA         Inswich Coventry Yeovil Norwich Perth Nottingham Brentwood         Tel No: 0845 0405 969         WWW.SURVEY-Solutions.co.uk         LAND SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING         PROJECT TITLE         BEADLES VOLKSWAGON,         COMET WAY, HATFIELD.         DRAWING DETAIL         UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.         Sheet 1 of 1         CLIENT         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       SCALE         SURVEY DATE         SURVEY OR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SURVEY OR TE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS          GSB       GSB <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>									
PROJECT TITLE       BADLES VOLKSWAGON, COMET WAY, HATFIELD       SCALE 1:200         PRAWING DETAIL       UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY. ShirlDWP       SCALE 1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY 0:811/2016         CLIENT       SCALE 1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY 0:811/2016         CLIENT       SCALE 1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY 0:811/2019         CALE       COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       SCALE 1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY 0:811/2019       APPROVED BY 0:811/2019       BY 0:82         DRAWING NUMBER       REVISION       ISSUE DATE 19/11/2019       REVISION       ISSUE DATE 19/11/2019		REV DESCR	RIPTION			DR/	AWN (	CHECKED	APPR SURVEY DATI
PROJECT TITLE       BEADLES VOLKSWAGON, COMET WAY, HATFIELD.         DRAWING NUMBER       CTV DRAINAGE SURVEY. SURVEYOR         Survey or bill       Scale Signification         Scale Survey or bill       Scale Signification						77			
PROJECT TITLE       BEADLES VOLKSWAGON, COMET WAY, HATFIELD       SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING         DRAWING DETAIL       UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY. Sheet 1 of 1       SCALE 1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY GSB       SCALE 1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY GSB       SURVED BY FINAL							${\mathbf X}$	V	EY
Ipswich Coventry Yeovil Norwich Perth Nottingham Brentwood         Tel No: 0845 0405 969         Fax No: 0845 0405 970         www.survey-solutions.co.uk         LAND SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING         PROJECT TITLE         BEADLES VOLKSWAGON, COMET WAY, HATFIELD.         DRAWING DETAIL         UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.         Sheet 1 of 1         CLIENT         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD         SURVEY DATE         CHECKED BY         SURVEY DATE         SURVEY DATE         CHECKED BY         SURVEY DATE				S	50	ĹŪ	JĴ		DNS
Tel No: 0845 0405 969       Fax No: 0845 0405 970         www.survey-solutions.co.uk       enquiries@survey-solutions.co.uk         LAND SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING         PROJECT TITLE         BEADLES VOLKSWAGON, COMET WAY, HATFIELD.         DRAWING DETAIL         UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY. Sheet 1 of 1         CLIENT       SCALE         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE         SJH/DWP       08/11/2019         GSB       FINAL         DRAWING NUMBER       REVISION         LORAWING NUMBER       REVISION         LORAWING NUMBER       REVISION		lpswich	Covent	ry Yeovil	Norwic	ch Perth	n Not	tingham	n Brentwood
PROJECT TITLE         BEADLES VOLKSWAGON,         COMET WAY, HATFIELD.         DRAWING DETAIL         UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.         Sheet 1 of 1         CLIENT       SCALE         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       SCALE         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY         SJH/DWP       08/11/2019       GSB       GSB       FINAL         DRAWING NUMBER       REVISION       18/11/2010		Tel No: 08 www.surv	345 0405 9 ey-solutio	969 ns.co.uk		enc	quiries	Fax No: @survey-	0845 0405 970 solutions.co.uk
PROJECT TITLE         BEADLES VOLKSWAGON,         COMET WAY, HATFIELD.         DRAWING DETAIL         UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.         Sheet 1 of 1         CLIENT         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD         SURVEYOR         SURVEYOR         SURVEYOR         SURVEYOR         SURVEYOR         SURVEYOR         SURVEYOR         CHECKED BY         APPROVED BY         DWG STATUS         FINAL         DRAWING NUMBER         253721 IG-01		LAND SU	RVEYING	BUILDIN	G SURV	eying (	JNDEI	RGROUN	D SURVEYING
DRAWING DETAIL         UTILITIES AND CCTV DRAINAGE SURVEY.         Sheet 1 of 1         CLIENT       SCALE         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       SCALE         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY         SJH/DWP       08/11/2019       GSB       GSB         DRAWING NUMBER       REVISION       ISSUE DATE         253721 IG-01       18/11/2010		PROJECT BEADLE	TITLE ES VOLI		DN,				
Sheet 1 of 1       CLIENT       SCALE         COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY         SJH/DWP       08/11/2019       GSB       GSB         DRAWING NUMBER       REVISION       ISSUE DATE         253721 IG-01       18/11/2010			DETAIL			GE SU	RVF	Y.	
COMET WAY HATFIELD LTD       1:200         SURVEYOR       SURVEY DATE       CHECKED BY       APPROVED BY       DWG STATUS         SJH/DWP       08/11/2019       GSB       GSB       FINAL         DRAWING NUMBER       REVISION       ISSUE DATE       18/11/2010		Sheet 1 CLIENT	of 1					•••	SCALE
SJH/DWP     08/11/2019     GSB     GSB     FINAL       DRAWING NUMBER     REVISION     ISSUE DATE       253721 IG-01     18/11/2010		COMET SURVEYO	R SUR			KED BY	APP	ROVED BY	1:200
		DRAWING	NUMBER	172019	^{GSB}		GSB REVI	SION	ISSUE DATE

+ 76.5

Original Sheet Size A1H

25372UG-01

## Appendix C Thames Water Records & Correspondence

Sewer asset records ref. 2019_4069569

Sewer flood history dated July 2020



Based on the Ordnance Survey Map with the Sanction of the controller of H.M. Stationery Office, License no. 100019345 Crown Copyright Reserved.

7701       76.19       n/a         7801       76.57       70.44         681B       75.57       72.16         681A       75.51       72.11         681D       74.97       72.555         681F       75.26       72.34         681C       74.97       72.315         681E       75.25       72.225         563S       n/a       n/a         671H       n/a       n/a         661C       n/a       n/a         661B       n/a       n/a         661A       n/a       n/a         6701       75.86       71.01         6601       75.69       71.09	
7801       76.57       70.44         681B       75.57       72.16         681A       75.51       72.11         681D       74.97       72.555         681F       75.26       72.34         681C       74.97       72.315         681E       75.25       72.225         563S       n/a       n/a         661C       n/a       n/a         661B       n/a       n/a         661A       n/a       n/a         6701       75.86       71.01         6601       75.69       71.09	
681B75.5772.16681A75.5172.11681D74.9772.555681F75.2672.34681C74.9772.315681E75.2572.225563Sn/an/a671Hn/an/a661Cn/an/a661Bn/an/a661An/an/a670175.8671.01660175.6971.09	
681A75.5172.11681D74.9772.555681F75.2672.34681C74.9772.315681E75.2572.225563Sn/an/a671Hn/an/a661Cn/an/a661Bn/an/a661An/an/a670175.8671.01660175.6971.09	
681D     74.97     72.555       681F     75.26     72.34       681C     74.97     72.315       681E     75.25     72.225       563S     n/a     n/a       671H     n/a     n/a       661C     n/a     n/a       661B     n/a     n/a       661A     n/a     n/a       6701     75.86     71.01       6601     75.69     71.09	
681F       75.26       72.34         681C       74.97       72.315         681E       75.25       72.225         563S       n/a       n/a         671H       n/a       n/a         661C       n/a       n/a         661B       n/a       n/a         661A       n/a       n/a         6701       75.86       71.01         6601       75.69       71.09	
681C     74.97     72.315       681E     75.25     72.225       563S     n/a     n/a       671H     n/a     n/a       661C     n/a     n/a       661B     n/a     n/a       661A     n/a     n/a       6701     75.86     71.01       6601     75.69     71.09	
681E     75.25     72.225       563S     n/a     n/a       671H     n/a     n/a       661C     n/a     n/a       661B     n/a     n/a       661A     n/a     n/a       6701     75.86     71.01       6601     75.69     71.09	
563S     n/a     n/a       564S     n/a     n/a       671H     n/a     n/a       661C     n/a     n/a       661B     n/a     n/a       661A     n/a     n/a       6701     75.86     71.01       6601     75.69     71.09	
671H     n/a     n/a       661C     n/a     n/a       661B     n/a     n/a       661A     n/a     n/a       6701     75.86     71.01       6601     75.69     71.09	
671h         1//a         1//a           661C         n/a         n/a           661B         n/a         n/a           661A         n/a         n/a           6701         75.86         71.01           6601         75.69         71.09	
661B         n/a         n/a           661A         n/a         n/a           6701         75.86         71.01           6601         75.69         71.09	
661B         11/a         11/a           661A         n/a         n/a           6701         75.86         71.01           6601         75.69         71.09	
661A         11/a         11/a           6701         75.86         71.01           6601         75.69         71.09	
6601 75.69 71.01 71.01	
6601   75.69   71.09	
6702 n/a n/a	
572N 75.5 74.5	
571W 75.5 74.5	
571V 75.5 74.5	
571Y 75.35 71.9	
571Q 75.4 72.56	
571L 75.7 74.95	
571N 75.52 72.35	
571X 75.55 71.84	
671G 75.695 74.205	
573U n/a n/a	
572D n/a n/a	
671C 75.48 71.275	
572C 75.65 74.65	
671D 76.13 73.88	
6707 75 49 75 49	
671F 75 99 74 23	
571M 75.7 74.4	
571 MI 75.7 74.4	
5/1J 75.5 75.0Z	
5/1E / 5.0/ /2.11	
5/35 n/a n/a	
6/1E 74.38 72.86	
5/1D 75.7 73.825	
573R n/a n/a	
571B 75.95 71.44	
573Q n/a n/a	
572A 75.75 74.49	
571I 75.7 73.46	
572I n/a n/a	
572K   n/a   n/a	
671B 75.58 72.65	
573P   n/a   n/a	
572G n/a n/a	
573M n/a n/a	
572B 75.7 74.33	
572F n/a n/a	
571H 75.65 73.28	
572E n/a n/a	
573N n/a n/a	
572M n/a n/a	
571F 75.38 71.91	
5730 n/a	
571G 75 367 74 775	
572.1 n/a 1/1/3	
5710 10.330 //1.3 5740 76.4 74.005	
1.00	
The position of the apparatus shown on this plan is given without obligation and warranty, and the accuracy cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes are not sho liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by Thames Water for any error or omission. The actual position of mains and services must be verified and estable	wn but their presence should be anticipated. No ished on site before any works are undertaken



Sewer Key - Commercial Drainage and Water Enquiry

Vater

 Arrows (on gravity fed sewers) or flecks (on rising mains) indicate direction of flow.

unsure about any text or symbology present on the plan, please contact a member of Property Searches on 0118 925 1504.

 Most private pipes are not shown on our plans, as in the past, this information has not been recorded.

5) 'na' or '0' on a manhole level indicates that data is unavailable.

Thames Water Utilities Ltd. Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Stough St. 1 4W, DX 151280 Stough 13 T 0845 070 9148 E searches@thameswater.co.uk I www.thameswater.propertysearches.co.uk





Peter Brett Associates LLP

Cow Lane

Search add	ress sup	plied
------------	----------	-------

Advantage Cars Comet Way Comet Square, Hatfield Business Park Hatfield AL10 1JD

Your reference	47179
Our reference	SFH/SFH Standard/2020_4221962
Received date	27 July 2020
Search date	31 July 2020



Thames Water Utilities Ltd Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4WW DX 151280 Slough 13



searches@thameswater.co.uk www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk



0845 070 9148





#### Search address supplied: Advantage Cars,Comet Way,Comet Square, Hatfield Business Park,Hatfield,AL10 1JD

## This search is recommended to check for any sewer flooding in a specific address or area

- TWUL, trading as Property Searches, are responsible in respect of the following:-
- (i) any negligent or incorrect entry in the records searched;
- (ii) any negligent or incorrect interpretation of the records searched;
- (iii) and any negligent or incorrect recording of that interpretation in the search report
- (iv) compensation payments



Thames Water Utilities Ltd Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4WW DX 151280 Slough 13



searches@thameswater.co.uk www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk



0845 070 9148





#### **History of Sewer Flooding**

## Is the requested address or area at risk of flooding due to overloaded public sewers?

The flooding records held by Thames Water indicate that there have been no incidents of flooding in the requested area as a result of surcharging public sewers.

#### For your guidance:

- A sewer is "overloaded" when the flow from a storm is unable to pass through it due to a permanent problem (e.g. flat gradient, small diameter). Flooding as a result of temporary problems such as blockages, siltation, collapses and equipment or operational failures are excluded.
- "Internal flooding" from public sewers is defined as flooding, which enters a building or passes below a suspended floor. For reporting purposes, buildings are restricted to those normally occupied and used for residential, public, commercial, business or industrial purposes.
- "At Risk" properties are those that the water company is required to include in the Regulatory Register that is presented annually to the Director General of Water Services. These are defined as properties that have suffered, or are likely to suffer, internal flooding from public foul, combined or surface water sewers due to overloading of the sewerage system more frequently than the relevant reference period (either once or twice in ten years) as determined by the Company's reporting procedure.
- Flooding as a result of storm events proven to be exceptional and beyond the reference period of one in ten years are not included on the At Risk Register.
- Properties may be at risk of flooding but not included on the Register where flooding incidents have not been reported to the Company.
- Public Sewers are defined as those for which the Company holds statutory responsibility under the Water Industry Act 1991.
- It should be noted that flooding can occur from private sewers and drains which are not the responsibility of the Company. This report excludes flooding from private sewers and drains and the Company makes no comment upon this matter.
- For further information please contact Thames Water on Tel: 0800 316 9800 or website www.thameswater.co.uk



Thames Water Utilities Ltd Property Searches, PO Box 3189, Slough SL1 4WW DX 151280 Slough 13

searches@thameswater.co.uk www.thameswater-propertysearches.co.uk



0845 070 9148

## Appendix D EA Records and Correspondence

Product 4 request response ref. HNL181199NR dated August 2020

#### Hartley, Michael

From:	NET Enquiries <hnlenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk></hnlenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Sent:	14 August 2020 16:41
То:	Hartley, Michael
Subject:	RE: HNL181199NR - Comet Way, Hatfield

Dear Michael

## Enquiry regarding Flood Risk Assessment for Comet Way, Hatfield (National Grid Ref: TL 21654, 08776)

Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 27 July 2020.

We respond to requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Environmental Information Regulations 2004.

All of the data you have requested is already available online for you to access yourself. Please see the links below.

The property is in an area located within Flood Zone 1 shown on our Flood Map for Planning (Rivers and Sea).

Note - This information relates to the area that the above named site is in and is not specific to the property/proposed development itself.

Because this site does not fall within an area at risk of flooding from rivers or the sea, we do not hold any detailed flood modelling data that would impact your site. As such we are unable to provide a flood risk product.

We do not hold records of historic flood events from rivers and/or the sea affecting the area local to this site. However, please be aware that this does not necessarily mean that flooding has not occurred here in the past, as our records are not comprehensive.

This address is in 20m of an area at low risk and within 20m at a medium risk of surface water flooding. Following the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, Lead Local Flood Authorities are responsible for the management of groundwater and surface water flooding. They also maintain a register of property flooding incidents. You may want to seek further advice from the Hertfordshire County Council who may have further information.

If you have requested this information to help inform a development proposal, then you should note the information on GOV.UK on the use of Environment Agency Information for Flood Risk Assessments

https://www.gov.uk/planning-applications-assessing-flood-risk https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pre-planning-application-enquiry-form-preliminary-opinion

You can also view and print surface water flood maps online at: <u>http://watermaps.environment-agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiyby.aspx?topic=ufmfsw#x=357683&y=355134&scale=2</u>

This information is provided subject to the Open Government Licence, which you should read.

We respond to requests for recorded information that we hold under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the associated Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIR).

Data Available Online

Many of our flood datasets are available online:

- You can view and download flood risk maps from our website at: <u>http://watermaps.environment-</u> <u>agency.gov.uk/wiyby/wiyby.aspx?topic=floodmap#x=357683&y=355134&scale=2</u>
- Flood Map For Planning (Flood Zone 2, Flood Zone 3, Flood Storage Areas, Flood Defences, Areas Benefiting from Defences)
- <u>Risk of Flooding from Rivers and Sea</u>
- Historic Flood Map
- <u>Current Flood Warnings</u>
- Open data

Please use the following link for details of reports for known problems regarding groundwater flooding issues <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/groundwater-current-status-and-flood-risk</u> if there is not one for your site this means that we don't know about any problems in our records.

A groundwater contour map is available from the British Geological Survey website: <u>https://www.bgs.ac.uk/research/groundwater/datainfo/levels/levels_data.html</u>

Groundwater level data can be found as open data here: <u>https://data.gov.uk/search?q=groundwater+levels</u>

Guidance on groundwater flooding is available - <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/flooding-from-groundwater</u>

Our water quality data is available online via open data website. <u>https://data.gov.uk/dataset/a0e6f23e-d631-4584-9ea2-7053620e4af2/water-quality-archive</u>

Additionally, you can view the catchment data explorer for Water Framework Directive status and details of the area. - <u>http://environment.data.gov.uk/catchment-planning/</u>

Please get in touch if you have any further queries or contact us within two months if you'd like us to review the information we have sent.

Kind regards,

Naoimh Richardson Customers and Engagement Officer

■ 0203 0257507 ① <u>HNLenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk</u>

Environment Agency, Hertfordshire and North London Alchemy, Bessemer Road, Welwyn Garden City, Hertfordshire, AL7 1HE Pronouns: she/her (why is this here?)

Working days: Monday to Friday 7am - 3pm



## Creating a better place for people and wildlife



## Water pollution incidents

Sign up to email alerts of incidents affecting your local watercourse



bit.ly/HNLwaterincidents

From: NET Enquiries
Sent: 11 August 2020 12:30
To: Hartley, Michael <michael.hartley@stantec.com>
Cc: NET Enquiries <HNLenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: Comet Way, Hatfield

**Dear Michael** 

I can confirm that we have received your enquiry.

We log jobs in date order and have a very large number of requests at the moment, currently standing at 213. We are logging jobs currently from the 21 July so we will get to your email as soon as we can.

We hope to get the enquiry completed within the 20 working days, if not before.

Kind regards,

Naoimh Richardson Customers and Engagement Officer

- 0203 0257507 ① <u>HNLenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk</u>
- Environment Agency, Hertfordshire and North London Alchemy, Bessemer Road, Welwyn Garden City, Hertfordshire, AL7 1HE

Working days: Monday to Friday 7am - 3pm

Pronouns: she/her (why is this here?)



Creating a better place for people and wildlife





From: Hartley, Michael [mailto:michael.hartley@stantec.com] Sent: 11 August 2020 12:05 To: NET Enquiries <<u>HNLenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk</u>> Subject: RE: Comet Way, Hatfield

#### Dear Sir/Madam

We are just checking the EA have received our enquiry below ok? If you could update me on this that would be great.

Many thanks

Michael.

Kind regards

Michael Hartley Direct: 01223 802952 michael.hartley@stantec.com

Address: 3rd Floor, 50-60 Station Road, Cambridge, CB1 2JH Main Tel: 01223 882000





The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

From: Hartley, Michael Sent: 27 July 2020 11:00 To: <u>HNLenquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk</u> Subject: Comet Way, Hatfield

Dear Sir/Madam,

Stantec has been commissioned to undertake a Flood Risk Assessment for land at Comet Way, Hatfield (National Grid Ref: TL 21654, 08776). The area of interest is shown on attached location plan.

The site is in Flood Zone 1 according to the online government website.

We would be grateful if you could provide the following information:

- Any records of previous flooding of the site
- Confirmation the site is located in flood zone 1
- Regional groundwater level and flow direction data.
- Any EA apparatus within the site?
- Are there any Water Framework Directive related information the EA expects to be produced to support the planning application?

Kind regards

Michael Hartley Direct: 01223 802952 michael.hartley@stantec.com

Address: 3rd Floor, 50-60 Station Road, Cambridge, CB1 2JH Main Tel: 01223 882000





The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

Disclaimer: The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately. This communication may come from a variety of legal entities within or associated with the Stantec group. For a full list of details for these entities please see our website at <u>www.stantec.com</u>. Where business communications relate to the Stantec UK Limited entity, the registered office is Kingsmead Business Park, London Road, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP11 1JU Tel: 01494 526240 and the company is registered in England as registration number 01188070.

Information in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you have received this message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it and do not copy it to anyone else. We have checked this email and its attachments for viruses. But you should still check any attachment before opening it. We may have to make this message and any reply to it public if asked to under the Freedom of Information Act, Data Protection Act or for litigation. Email messages and attachments sent to or from any Environment Agency address may also be accessed by someone other than the sender or recipient, for business purposes.

## Appendix E Welwyn Hatfield Council SFRA Extracts

Extract of 'Areas Susceptible to Groundwater Flooding' and 'Flooding from Artificial Sources' maps

#### Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Extracts

Extracts from Welwyn Hatfield Council Level 1 and 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Final Report dated May 2016, prepared by JBA Consulting.



#### Areas susceptible to Groundwater flooding Map



#### Flood from Artificial Sources



Legend



## Appendix F Council Records & Correspondence

Welwyn Hatfield correspondence dated 3rd August 2020

Hertfordshire County Council correspondence dated 27th July 2020

#### Hartley, Michael

From:	Andy Cremer <a.cremer@welhat.gov.uk></a.cremer@welhat.gov.uk>
Sent:	03 August 2020 15:34
То:	Hartley, Michael
Subject:	RE: Comet Way, Hatfield Flood Risk Assessment Enquiry

Hi Michael

I can confirm I'm not aware of any further information to that supplied previously.

Kind regards

Andy

From: Hartley, Michael [mailto:michael.hartley@stantec.com]
Sent: 27 July 2020 10:49
To: Andy Cremer <A.Cremer@welhat.gov.uk>
Subject: Comet Way, Hatfield Flood Risk Assessment Enquiry

# ** WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening attachments or clicking links **

Dear Andy,

Stantec are carrying out a Flood Risk Assessment to support a planning application for land at Comet Way, Hatfield. Location Plan attached.

My work colleague Max consulted you back in February about whether Welwyn Hatfield Council holds any flood records for the site, of which you confirmed there are none you are aware of (see email below). Could you please confirm your response is unchanged from February and that the council holds no other flood risk related information for the site?

Many thanks

Kind regards

Michael Hartley Direct: 01223 802952 michael.hartley@stantec.com

Address: 3rd Floor, 50-60 Station Road, Cambridge, CB1 2JH Main Tel: 01223 882000





The content of this email is the confidential property of Stantec and should not be copied, modified, retransmitted, or used for any purpose except with Stantec's written authorization. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete all copies and notify us immediately. Please consider the environment before printing this email. To: Davison, Max <<u>Max.Davison@stantec.com</u>> Subject: Hatfield Flood Risk Assessment Enquiry

#### Classification: Unrestricted

Dear Max

Thank you for your enquiry. This has also been passed to our Planning Policy Team. I am the council's lead on emergency planning and I have no records of being called regarding any flooding to Comet Way. Please note that I only maintain records for flood events of which I am notified, so my answer cannot state that there has never been flooding in this area.

Kind regards

Andy

Andy Cremer MSc PG(Cert) MEPS Risk and Resilience Manager Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 201707 357169 (office) 207776 464797 (mobile)

#### Working better, together

Email: <u>a.cremer@welhat.gov.uk</u> www.welhat.gov.uk @WelHatCouncil @WHpublichealth Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

#### Please consider the environment before printing this email.

You can report missed bins, abandoned vehicles, fly-tipping, litter, graffiti and flyposting as well as tell us about problems with litter and dog bins Online. The information in this email is intended for the named recipients only. It may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this email and your reply cannot be guaranteed.

This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and intellectual property (including copyright material). It is only for the use of the addressee(s) in accordance with any instructions contained within it. Please treat any personal and sensitivity data that may be contained within this email in accordance with the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA). Such data should only be processed and retained where there is a legitimate need to do so. Should you have a legitimate need to share this information please make the recipient aware of their responsibilities for handling this data in accordance with the GDPR and DPA. If you are not the addressee, you are prohibited from copying, forwarding, disclosing, saving or otherwise using it in any way. If you receive this email in error, please immediately advise the sender and delete it. Our IT supplier Sopra Steria may monitor the content of emails within Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council's network to ensure compliance with the Council's policies and procedures. Emails are susceptible to alteration and their integrity (including origin) cannot be assured. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and Sopra Steria shall not be liable for any modification to a message, or for messages falsely sent.

#### Hartley, Michael

From:	James Lester <james.lester@hertfordshire.gov.uk> on behalf of Flood and Water</james.lester@hertfordshire.gov.uk>
	Management <floodandwatermanagement@hertfordshire.gov.uk></floodandwatermanagement@hertfordshire.gov.uk>
Sent:	27 July 2020 11:29
То:	Hartley, Michael
Subject:	RE: Comet Way, Hatfield

Hi Michael

We do not have any flood records for this site. However, please note that just because we do not have a record of any flooding does not mean that there have not been any incidents. The LLFA was established in 2010 and we have only been collecting records since then. Even so, we largely rely on residents and other authorities to provide us with information.

Kind regards,

James



James Lester MCIWEM Project Officer | Flood Risk Management | Environment & Infrastructure Hertfordshire County Council County Hall, Pegs Lane, Hertford, SG13 8DE, Postal Point: CH215 T: 01992 555532 (Internal: 25532) E: James.Lester@hertfordshire.gov.uk



From: Hartley, Michael <michael.hartley@stantec.com>
Sent: 27 July 2020 11:02
To: Flood and Water Management <FloodandWaterManagement@hertfordshire.gov.uk>
Subject: Comet Way, Hatfield

Dear Sir/Madam,

Stantec has been commissioned to undertake a Flood Risk Assessment for land at Comet Way, Hatfield (see location plan). A plan showing the site boundary is attached. The site is centered at NGR: 521651E, 208776N.

Could you please provide us with any information in your possession regarding flood risk including flood records for the site? We are also speaking to Thames Water, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, and the Environment Agency.

Thank you for your assistance. If you require any further information please contact myself on this contact email address.

Please let us know as soon as possible if there is a charge for this information so that we can raise the necessary payment.

Kind regards

Michael Hartley Direct: 01223 802952 michael.hartley@stantec.com

Address: 3rd Floor, 50-60 Station Road, Cambridge, CB1 2JH Main Tel: 01223 882000



## Appendix G Development Proposals

Drawing 19_386_PL07	Proposed Site Plan
Drawing 19_386_PL08	Proposed Ground Floor Plan





